



BOOK II

SPIRITUAL READINESS

Luz de Maria

Revelaciones Marianas

Copyright:

Luz de María de Bonilla, reserves all copyrights on this book. Any person is authorized to download this work for personal and non-profit use only from our official website Revelaciones Marianas, e-mail address: www.revelacionesmarianas.com.

The reproduction, distribution, edition, alteration, modification, transmission or any other form of communication of this book, either partially or totally, in any format (printed, digital, verbal, visual or electronic) and through any platform, with or without animation, when the purpose is to commercialize or distribute it for profit, is strictly prohibited.

Any use other than the authorized herein shall require formal authorization, which may be requested through the following e-mail address: info@revelacionesmarianas.com.

Violation of these provisions shall be subject to the penalties provided by in state, national, international laws and/or treaties between countries on copyright.

"So remember what you have received and heard; and keep it and repent. Then if you are not alert, I will come like a thief, and you will not know at what hour I will come to you."

(Rev. 3:3)

"The end of all things is near; therefore, be of sound judgement and sober spirit for the purpose of prayer."

(1 Peter 4:7)

"But be on your guard, so that your hearts will not be weighed down with dissipation and drunkenness and the worries of life, and that this day will not come on you suddenly, like a trap; for it will come upon all those who live on the face of the earth. But stay alert at all times, praying that you will have strength to escape all these things that are going to take place, and to stand before the Son of Man." (Luke 21: 34-36)

PROLOGUE

Dear reader, we present this work called "EVERYTHING HAS ALREADY BEEN SAID BY MY HOUSE". It is made up of four books in which we have condensed a series of Messages, Revelations, and Prophecies given to Luz de Maria that detail the serious events and happenings that are beginning to occur with increasing intensity and danger, that will lead humanity and the planet to a radical change, not only in the physical-material order, but primarily the spiritual.

The content of this work does not include the Instrument's explanations about the Prophecies nor does it include informative aggregates of a scientific, philosophic or theological nature, but rather the information revealed by Heaven has been organized according to the most important events that have been given for humanity through Luz de Maria.

It is, therefore, a Divine invitation and of Our Blessed Mother to meditation, conscious observation, and a profound reflection about the reality of the world and of ourselves to thus be properly prepared physically, mentally and spiritually.

In other words, we can define this work as a roadmap, which we must all inevitably go through and understand in depth, not only with the eyes of faith, but also with reason, for the complexity of the events will be extremely difficult. Events that are geological, social, economic, political, environmental, health-related, war-related, cosmic and religious will deliver unprecedented attacks to humanity putting every human creature to the test.

Finally, having assimilated the information and comprehending the urgency of the moment, we will be able to responsibly assume a new and profound vision of reality and in this way strengthen the faith and hope that Heaven has promised us: a humanity that is purified, renewed and living in the Divine Will.

EVERYTHING HAS ALREADY BEEN SAID BY MY HOUSE! SPIRITUAL PREPARATION

Revelations given by God the Father, Our Lord Jesus Christ, the Most Holy Virgin Mary, Saint Michael the Archangel and Saint Raphael the Archangel to Luz de Maria from the year 2009 to March 2025

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 03.25.2025

Beloved children of My Immaculate Heart, receive My Maternal Blessing.

MY DESIRE IS TO SHELTER YOU WITHIN MY HEART SO THAT WORLDLY THINGS AND EVIL WOULD NOT TOUCH YOU.

You can obtain this: ask Me for it and devote yourselves to working and acting rightly so that you may be creatures of good. Ask Me every day to take you by the hand and lead you on the path to My Divine Son.

Pray to the Most Holy Trinity, not praying in haste, but above all with great respect and love.

Request the presence within you of the Gifts of the Holy Spirit and His Virtues (cf. Luke 11:9-13) so that your transformation would be in unison with Him.

Those whose character is difficult should ask the Holy Spirit to change them; it is necessary for you to ask for this. Those with envy, discord, resentment, the presumptuous, the unrepentant, those who persist in sin, must repent deeply and turn to the Sacrament of Reconciliation.

Children of My Divine Son:

YOU ARE IN GRAVE SPIRITUAL DANGER...

Those who persist in remaining allied to what holds them in sin are accessible to the Devil, and he subdues them with his cunning so that they would grieve the Holy Spirit (cf. Eph. 4:30-31).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

- I. The long-awaited moment has arrived
- II. Immediate change of life
- III. Need to be more spiritual
- IV. Remain on spiritual alert
- V. Time of trial of faith
- VI. Do not be afraid
- VII. What is subject to man's response
- VIII. Spiritual combat
- IX. Do not be spiritually blind
- X. Time for conversion
- XI. Knowing oneself
- XII. Knowing the Sacrosanct Trinity
 - a. Knowing Sacred Scripture
 - b. Remaining faithful to the true Magisterium of the Church
 - c. Scrutinizing the Messages from Heaven for this time
- XIII. Invoking the Queen and Mother of the End Times
- XIV. Knowing the Angel of Peace, God's Envoy, and uniting with Him
- XV. Strategies for Spiritual Growth
 - a. Living in Divine Will, uniting ourselves to the Holy Trinity
 - b. Asking for the help of the Holy Spirit

- c. Living united under the protection of the Queen and Mother
- d. Inner silence and meditation
- e. Asking for forgiveness and forgiving our brothers and sisters
- f. Sacrament of Reconciliation: Examination of conscience, repentance and the firm intention of amendment
- g. Asking for Divine Grace to develop the virtues:
 - Humility
 - Prudence
 - Obedience
 - Inner peace
 - Unity and fraternity
 - Increasing Faith
 - Living Hope
 - Being Love, Charity and Kindness
- h. Cleansing the mind, thoughts, and the physical and spiritual senses
- i. Invoking Saint Michael the Archangel, the Celestial Choirs and the Guardian Angels
- j. Complying with the Commandments of the Law of God and the Sacraments
 - k. Praying, worshiping and making reparation
 - 1. Fasting
 - m. Blessing ourselves and blessing our brothers and sisters
- XVI. Receiving Our Lord Jesus Christ in the Holy Eucharist
- XVII. Spiritual preparation for the Warning
- XVIII. Spiritual Refuges

I. THE LONG-AWAITED MOMENT HAS ARRIVED...

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.29.2025

This is a time of reflection and preparation in which you must be aware of the challenges and adversities that you are facing.

It is time for you to pray, children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ... It is time for you to meditate...

It is time for you to return to "the way, the truth and the life" (cf. Jn. 14:6)...

GOD THE FATHER

03.04.3035

PAY ATTENTION, CHILDREN, PAY ATTENTION, FOR THE TIME HAS COME!

Speak with care and mercy. Allow Me to mold you as My children, which is what you are (cf. Jer. 18:5-6).

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 01.16.2025

THIS IS THE MOMENT THAT SO MANY HAVE ANNOUNCED.

This is the moment when My children, steeped in impiety, will cause horror and fear wherever they go, forgetting that I am the Master of Heaven and Earth and that I will send "the great signal" to man in his lack of peace, which will tell you that the long-awaited moment has arrived, of which the majority are ignorant.

THE HAND OF MY FATHER HAS DESCENDED...
THIS GENERATION WILL NOT PASS WITHOUT EXPERIENCING
PURIFICATION.
YOU WILL COME TO ME IN SEARCH OF MY MERCY.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 11,25,2024

The time that some people wished would come has come, but later they will regret it...

The time has come when this generation will know how far their faith goes...

So many of My children prepare themselves with blessed candles but do not ask themselves: how is my soul? They continue with the arrogance that characterizes them. How can they receive help from My House if they do not want it?

Children:

The time of fear is coming for my children, for those who believe and for those who do not believe...

Uncertainty is coming, famine, darkness, war that is killing innocent people due to the foolishness of rules. Just one bad step taken by someone, and the response will be fatal for humankind...

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 03.07.2025

Very difficult times are coming little children: times of great trials, as you know, times of labor pains, and you - must maintain your faith in the midst of great calamities...

You must turn your gaze towards My Divine Son and let nothing keep you from maintaining My Divine Son at the center of your lives...

but you must bend your knees...

You must stretch out your hands towards your brothers and sisters and be merciful towards them, because sin condemns a person, it condemns My children.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.05.2021

This time is not like previous times...

This time is decisive: it is time to raise faith towards the heights, above your own selves.

The presence of the Devil is taking hold on Earth, continuously spreading pain.

This is not the time for entertainment; this is the time for contemplation. Not everything is pain or sorrow. Peace will arrive afterwards; you will experience Heaven in advance.

II. IMMEDIATE CHANGE OF LIFE

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.20.2025

Inner change is necessary – that of prevailing over the human ego, leaving aside works and actions for personal motives and being transformed people, starting with your gaze, your intentions in addressing your brothers and sisters, giving yourselves to the needy, being love for all and towards all.

Now leave behind the rags that you have always carried:

rags of pride, of arrogance, of criticism, of judgment, of domination, rags of making demands, rags of blaming your brothers and sisters, rags of envy, of lust, rags of being who you are out of envy.

Rags are rotten, keeping a person without peace and looking for evil. Rags are envy, the burden of loneliness, human dissatisfaction, the discontent that some of My children have: a poison that leads them to always wish that their brothers and sisters would do badly and always be beneath everyone else.

GOD THE FATHER 02.08.2025

I AM YOUR FATHER AND I LOVE YOU. I LOOK AT YOU AND PROTECT YOU WHEN YOUR FREE WILL ALLOWS ME TO DO SO.

My House has called you to a change of life, and so this mission began in order that you may free yourselves from sin and return to Me.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.13.2025

Change in your lives must take place now, *ipso facto*, not looking to the right or to the left, but straight ahead so that you would not be confused. My children, with the protection of this Mother, look with spiritual sight so that you will not be blinded by worldly things.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 12.27.2024

The change to which I call you is a change of life in your works and behavior and yet you continue to be the same; I do not see the effort necessary in order for a change to occur in you.

You think that I am referring to other brothers and sisters, but no, I am speaking to each one of you: I am speaking to you, My child, to you who distract yourself in order not to make commitments to this Mother.

I am speaking to you who are reading this Call, I call you to change – in your self-importance, in your character, in the way you treat your neighbor, in your way of speaking. You are not humble; My Divine Son is waiting to welcome you, but there is no change, there is no repentance.

FOR EACH ONE OF YOU, CHANGE IN THE DIRECTION OF A SPIRITUAL ASCENT LIES IN THE LOVE OF GOD AND NEIGHBOR. (cf. Mk. 12:28-31; Jn. 13:34-35).

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 10.28.2023

Children, time is running out:

It is impossible for you to carry on living as before...

It is impossible for you to make the same mistakes, the same sins...

It is important for you to mature spiritually and consciously begin to wake up.

III. NEED TO BE MORE SPIRITUAL

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 12.16.2024

Little children, you must keep yourselves spiritually prepared for what is to come, otherwise it will be extremely difficult for you to survive in the midst of what will take place.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.02.2023

Be more spiritual: in this way you will bring the Divine Light to those who live in darkness and to those who are lost on paths lined with sacrileges against Our King and Lord Jesus Christ and against Our Queen and Mother.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.03.2023

Humanity will receive instructions that it will sometimes find disconcerting. These are to be implemented in the various aspects of daily life. Everything is going to change, nothing will be the same; therefore, Our Queen and Mother instructs you to be more spiritual and less worldly, so that discernment would keep you away from the Evil One.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

11.01.2021

Continue being more spiritual; separate yourselves from what is worldly so that you would not fall into ignorance, consequently being governed by personal considerations, unable to differentiate between what is good and what is bad.

IV. REMAIN ON SPIRITUAL ALERT

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.28.2025

I call you to remain spiritually alert and to remain in a state of constant discernment faced with the unforeseen events happening to you as the Mystical Body of Christ, which is the Church.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.23.2024

Beloved children, remain on spiritual alert, nourish yourselves with the good, protect yourselves spiritually, receive My Divine Son duly prepared, wish good to your brothers and sisters and practice good at all times (cf. Gal. 6:9-10). This is necessary for you at this time when you are continually being attacked by the Devil and his minions. Faith must maintain a strong, firm foundation so that it would not fail in the face of daily trials.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST

04.03.2024

Be aware, My children, that these alerts are not intended to make you afraid, but so that you would wake up and leave behind what is sinful. Walk carefully, because the enemy of the soul wants to lead you away so that, from one moment to the next, you would become persecutors of those who are your brothers and sisters (I Jn 3:11-12).

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 10.17.2023

Without fear, but being cautious in your works and actions, being faithful to My Divine Son, remain on spiritual alert, invoking the Holy Name of My Divine Son.

V. TIME OF TRIAL OF FAITH

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 05.24.2024

Times are coming when your faith will be tested, and you have to use this time to increase your faith, because this is the time of preparation, the time of grace so that you would continue to live by Me and feed on Me, and not turn away from Our Most Holy Trinity.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.27.2021

These are intense times; faith is continuously being tested. Every human being must use discernment for the salvation of their soul (cf. Mk. 8:36); not the discernment coming from their ego but requesting the assistance of the Holy Spirit. Pay attention: the enemy is laying snares for you.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 01.12.2021

Beloved people, remain ready to be tested in your Faith (I Pet 1,7) by those who control humanity and are in charge of the single religion, which excludes Me as it is not My Will, but the creation of the human will for purposes of world domination. Be aware that Faith will be tested in all aspects of human life, since on My People's journey, religion, education, moral formation, the economy... imply Faith in Me, so that you would persevere in the face of obligations imposed by the world order.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 01.28.2020

This is the time of suffering for the People of My Son. FAITH IS GOING TO BE TESTED, and therefore you have to be aware that you cannot be lukewarm (cf. Rev 3:15-16), you cannot proclaim with your mouth that you love My Son and do otherwise with your mind, you cannot praise My Son with one hand and do otherwise with the other, so you must praise with

both hands, you must love My Son with your heart, powers and senses, not by half measures.

MY SON'S PEOPLE WILL BE MORE GREATLY PUT TO THE TEST, so that in each person might transpire that which exists in the depths of their mind, their thoughts, their heart. Thus, each person will respond in truth, in lukewarmness or in denial.

VI. DO NOT BE AFRAID

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 01.23.2025

"Do not be afraid: am I not here, I who am your Mother?" Do not be afraid, My Divine Son is protecting you; you are children of the "King of kings and Lord of lords" (Rev. 19:16).

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.21.2024

Children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, do not fear; trust in the Divine protection for His children, keep it in mind! Prepare yourselves and leave the rest in Divine Hands. Do not think that you should not prepare, even if you have the assurance of Divine protection, you should always prepare.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.29.2023

Children, do not fear:

Who is like God? There is nobody like God!

WITH EVERYTHING THAT HE WANTS TO MAKE YOU FEAR, THE DEVIL HAS NO MORE POWER THAN GOD ALLOWS HIM, together with the freedom that each person allows him to take you and lead you to work and act against My Divine Son.

Do not fear - instead, strengthen your Faith, be convinced that God is the Almighty, the Omnipotent. You must believe it without hesitation, you must hold to the Faith that the Devil cannot do anything if do not want him to. The Devil flees from where you pray the Holy Rosary and flees from creatures who adore My Divine Son.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

06.20.2020

DO NOT BE AFRAID OF THE TRUTH THAT I BRING YOU FROM HEAVEN SO THAT YOU WOULD BE AWARE OF GOD'S FAITHFULNESS TOWARDS HIS PEOPLE. Do not fear: you have been warned in advance. Remain true to God and His Commandments, and the rest will be given to you besides.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.01.2020

DO NOT FEAR, YOU MUST FOCUS YOUR THINKING ON OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST SO THAT YOUR FAITH WOULD NOT LESSEN AND SO THAT YOU WOULD HAVE THE GRACE AND FULLNESS OF THE HOLY SPIRIT: THE ASSURANCE OF DIVINE ASSISTANCE.

Do not be discouraged if some human beings lose their Faith: lift up your gaze and stretch out your hands to your Queen and Mother.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 11,27,2009

We walk, yes, we walk united to the encounter with what is announced. Do not fear, I am with you, and My angels raise their swords to defend you. My Spirit gives you Words of wisdom, so that they pierce the heart of those who are still waiting for a Word in order to return to Me, that as beggar of Love, begs, asks and loves.

VII. WHAT IS SUBJECT TO MAN'S RESPONSE

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 10.21.2024

You do not understand that you are in the time in which the fulfillment of the announced revelations is unfolding. Some will be mitigated by your offerings, others are not conditioned upon man's response, for man himself is the cause of humanity's pain.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.01.2024

Pray to Our Queen and Mother: pray with strength, not forgetting that prayer achieves what the human race considers impossible. The prophecies are subject to humanity's response. You are heard if you respond as Heaven asks.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.15.2024

You know full well, little children, that what I have revealed over time are revelations to be fulfilled little by little, and, at a time when humanity is at its furthest from My Divine Son, that these revelations will occur if the human race does not convert.

What is subject to man's response will befall the human race as purification if it does not respond to the Divine Will. That which is subject to man's response via prayer and doing good is in the hands of man, and if man complies, the Prophecy will be diminished or the Most Holy Trinity will eliminate it.

If you respond as human beings by converting at this time when My children – all My children - should pray fervently, the Angelic Choirs will come to you to protect you.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.30.2024

Children of Our Queen and Mother, the human race will decline further spiritually - so much so that some Divine Decrees are being brought forward by Divine Will, while other Decrees that are subject to the response of the human creature have been cancelled due to the prayer and the reparation of those who pray, who convert and make reparation for those who do not believe.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 07.23.2023

These signs and signals are coming to fulfillment within God's Will. What you have not considered is that the Most Holy Trinity can cancel a decree made known in a prophecy on account of the strong and firm prayer of some children of God, who keep offering up their lived experience of the Eucharistic Celebration, receiving the Holy Eucharist in a state of grace and living each act or work in the constant practice of prayer.

VIII. SPIRITUAL COMBAT

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.13.2025

THIS IS A CONSTANT BATTLE BETWEEN GOOD AND EVIL, A VERY FIERCE BATTLE FOR SOULS.

For My Divine Son, each soul is a precious treasure...

For the Devil, souls are a trophy...

Therefore, every human being who strives to save souls, to be fraternal, to live in peace, to bring the light of my Divine Son to their brothers and sisters, is invaluable before the heavenly throne.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 12.16.2024

Humanity is in great danger; the spiritual battle for the salvation of souls is continuous (cf. Eph. 6:11-13; 1 Pet. 5:8-9).

The Heavenly Armies remain on alert to defend you; your Guardian Angels protect you – you should make this possible by walking towards conversion.

Humanity is not aware of the great spiritual struggle that exists at this time between the forces of evil and the forces of good; it is a fight for souls. Everything that you see or hear happening is due to this battle for souls.

THE DEVIL HAS GONE INTO A RAGE AND IS CONTINUALLY LASHING OUT AGAINST GOD'S PEOPLE.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 12.08.2023

My beloved, at the moment the battle for souls is fierce; the evil oppressor of My children is like a roaring lion looking for the slightest reason to tempt the weak and carry off his spoils.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.07.2023

Activate your conscience that has been numbed by the things of the world; by alternating between two paths, you live between worldly and the struggle against everything that is not divinely mandated, in a continuous battle not to fall, to stay on the side of Our beloved King and Lord Jesus Christ. Awaken your conscience so that you would not only live in worldly, personal things, but live longing for your own salvation and that of your brothers and sisters!

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 10.29,2022

You are living in spiritual warfare: the war between good and evil, the war for souls, for your souls.

You are part of humanity and of Salvation History, therefore you must be aware of the intense times in which you are living and not allow the spiritual change that must prevail at this time to go unnoticed.

It is important that you know the Old Testament so that what is happening at this moment would not be strange to you. Be aware of the Miracle of Love of My real Presence in the Eucharistic Food and in My People, whom I protect.

IX. DO NOT BE SPIRITUALLY BLIND

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 08.21.2023

My beloved going through the process of conversion, my children leave behind them foul-smelling chunks of meat that they carry with them, and without realizing it, they continue to be spiritually blind and proud, futile. Humanity is full of such people and it is urgent that they have the strength to see themselves as they are, with their personal defects, and not to look at those of others.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 11.29.2021

You find yourselves in chaos...

And yet so many of My own still not do not see, do not hear, being spiritually blind and deaf! How I grieve as the Mother of this generation wounded by evil!

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 07.02.2020

You despise My Word without knowing Me: you are spiritually blind, refusing to look with new eyes, forgetting that "man does not live by bread alone, but by every word that comes from the Mouth of God" (Mt. 4:4). My children have taken the wrong path, deciding to go where I warned them not to, so that they would not get lost; their love for worldly things has grown and they despise Our Most Holy Trinity and My Most Holy Mother.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY

06.07.2020

Beloved People of My Son, the spiritually blind are leading My children towards false doctrines in which the Faith is buried and confusion spreads, making My children fall into evil: this is the time when those who are indecisive are falling into the clutches of the devil.

X. TIME FOR CONVERSION

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.12.2024

What you need is conversion (cf. Acts 3:19; Rev. 3:19), you do not need dates or occult powers to excel, what you need is conversion; and this you do not obtain from one moment to the next, but until the last breath of your life in which you will be fighting for that conversion.

What is approaching humanity in general is so strong and so varied, that walking in conversion will be what will give you the necessary strength to continue with faith and thus attain the help of my house.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 03.07.2024

You must prepare urgently for change as you are going to be judged on love, on works (cf. Mt. 25:31-46), and you must present your hands with abundant works on behalf of the conversion of your brothers and sisters, but firstly on behalf of your own conversion.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.15.2024

What is coming is exceedingly serious: you can neither imagine it nor think of it. Leave it in Divine Hands, but concern yourselves with transforming your lives, with conversion, children, with helping your brothers and sisters, with abandoning selfishness and personal glory, and with attending to your neighbor without your neighbor having to ask you.

I CALL YOU TO PREPARE YOURSELVES FOR EVERYTHING THAT WILL HAPPEN TO YOU, BUT REMEMBER THAT YOU ARE NOT ALONE, MY CHILDREN, because I love you, because you are children of My Divine Son, because My Son knows what each one of you needs, what each one of you is asking for. I repeat, My children - yes, children, set about becoming saints, set achievable goals for yourselves, as each battle won is a precious pearl that you place in the Crown of My Divine Son.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.03.2022

THIS IS THE ERA OF THE HOLY SPIRIT FOR THOSE WHO STAND FIRM IN FAITH... (Joel 2,28-29)

It will be a time of wonders for those who want to convert: this is the moment to do so. No matter how intense the times may be, they are optimal for personal conversion.

The manual for the way is Love.

The signpost marked so that you would not go astray is obedience.

The meeting point is fraternal love.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.15.2022

You must remain in peace so that your spirit would not be disturbed and you must live without resentment (cf. Lev. 19:18), otherwise the latter will increase. I therefore call upon you to convert and not to waste the present moment in banalities, because if you invest your time in the affairs of Heaven, Heaven itself will multiply your time.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.06.2021

Not looking out for yourselves, but to the good of your neighbor, leads you more quickly along the path of conversion; loving those who do not love you, who do not understand you, is of personal benefit.

You have not been called to live out the Faith in isolation, but to share it with your brothers and sisters, being testimonies of Divine Love, testimonies of fraternity, seeking the common good, being those who, protected by Our Lord and King Jesus Christ, bring personal Faith to the community and make the path of their brothers and sisters more bearable, while at the same time conveying the desire that all would attain conversion.

XI. KNOWING ONSELF

FATHER (cf. Lc. 15:11-32).

GOD THE FATHER 03.04.2025

YOU ARE STARTING THE TIME OF REFLECTION IN WHICH I CALL YOU TO LOOK AT YOURSELVES, TO ANALYSE YOURSELVES, TO OBSERVE YOURSELVES WITHOUT PRETENSE, SO THAT YOU WOULD SEE YOURSELVES AS YOU ARE AND RETURN TO ME, YOUR

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.03.2021

Examine yourselves; it is urgent that each one of you look inside yourselves. This is not a game, for in doing so you are deciding between conversion, salvation or continuing to deceive yourselves and losing your souls. Be sincere with yourselves. At this moment you cannot be the same spiritually irresponsible people as yesterday: it is urgent that you commit to inner change now!

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 10.26.2019

It is urgent that you look at and examine yourselves, and those whose hearts are intoxicated by a lack of love must urgently seek the medicine of God's Love so that the Devil does not provoke them to commit faults of which they will have to repent.

XII. KNOWING THE SACROSANCT TRINITY

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 03.05.2025

The determination to refuse to know Me, the constant failure to delve into the breadth of My Love and the depth of My Mercy (cf. Eph. 3:16-19) limits you to the immediacy of worldly things.

GOD THE FATHER

02.08.2025

IT IS NECESSARY FOR YOU TO KNOW ME SO THAT YOU WOULD HAVE THE CERTAINTY THAT I AM LOVE, and only when you find Me in your search will the anxieties of your heart find peace and hope - that which leads you to see a better tomorrow at all times. YOU DO NOT KNOW ME BECAUSE YOU DO NOT STUDY THE HOLY SCRIPTURES (2 Tim. 3:16-17), and you discard My Laws, surpassing Sodom and Gomorrah (cf. Gen. 19).

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 01.16.2025

Humanity, turn your gaze and look at Me. You are traveling along other rough roads with cliffs and great traps into which you fall, being deceived because of not knowing Me.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.16.2024

Know My Word so that you will not be deceived, know Me so that you will be certain about how I work and act and about how the Devil works and acts (Cf. Jn. 5:39-40)

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 10.28.2023

At this time, you have delegated the guidance of your life to the things of the world, which keep hold of you as creatures who do not seek Me, do not know Me and do not love Me. You have put spirituality last by not knowing Me. You have allowed the Evil One, the oppressor of souls, to penetrate the lives of each of My children, thereby succeeding in contaminating them, guiding them towards everything that causes Me pain, towards that which leads you to perdition, and if you do not convert, to lose Eternal Life.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.12.2018

At this instant the true purpose of evil has been unveiled before Humanity, having taken possession of everything that can help man, with the purpose of making man prey to what evil offers. This is the dominion of evil, this is the dominion of the devil, this is the instant that the devil has sought in order to grant to the antichrist the possession of everything that man needs and thus tie the hands of the man who does not have a firm faith. That is why I have called you to know Me, to enter into the knowledge of Sacred Scripture and other documents of the Church.

Knowledge does not go against reason because you cannot love whom you do not know. It is urgent that My People come out of ignorance and enter into the relationship that they should maintain with their Lord and God.

a. KNOWING SACRED SCRIPTURE

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 03.19.2025

I want you to know that later the Antichrist will stop acting in darkness and will act in broad daylight, implanting a false doctrine, and this is why I call you to know the Holy Scriptures (cf. Jn. 5:39-40), to deepen your knowledge of them, and to meditate on them so that you would not allow yourselves to be deceived.

GOD THE FATHER

02.08.2025

COME TO KNOW ME IN HOLY SCRIPTURE BUT LIVE A PERSONAL ENCOUNTER WITH THIS FATHER OF YOURS; IN THIS WAY YOU WILL LIVE IN A NEW WORLD AND EVERYTHING WILL CHANGE BEFORE YOUR EYES.

Children, know Me in Holy Scripture! Know My Law!

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.31.2024

In order for you to be able to stand firm in the faith, you must delve deeply into holy scripture, now! So that you will not be deceived or led to become lukewarm, for "the lukewarm will be spewed out of the mouth of God the Father" (Cft. Rev. 3:15).

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.10.2022

I see so much of humanity running after the Antichrist because of not knowing Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, ignoring the fact that Our King and Lord Jesus Christ worked miracles and did not boast about it, but on the contrary, went away quickly. What is different about the Antichrist is that he will announce the supposed "miracles" that he will do. You know full well that they will not be miracles, but works of evil: he will make use of demons so as to appear to raise someone from the dead. IT IS THEREFORE URGENT THAT YOU KNOW OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST DIRECTLY FROM HOLY SCRIPTURE: IN THIS WAY YOU WILL RECOGNIZE HIM AND NOT BE DECEIVED.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 05.01.2022

FOOLISH CHILDREN! YOU DO NOT KNOW THE PROPHECIES CONTAINED IN SACRED SCRIPTURE. If you knew them, you would understand the times in which you find yourselves and the signs and signals of this moment. Everything is found in Sacred Scripture, yet humanity no longer believes in the Most Holy Trinity, scorns Me and denies being God's workmanship.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.25.2019

My children must stand firm and be creatures of Faith supported by the knowledge of My Word and love for Our Most Holy Trinity. MY WORD IS FOR YESTERDAY, TODAY AND FOREVER (cf. Heb 13:8). It is current and therefore eternally new, not needing man 's innovation, but it is to be welcomed, to be put into practice at every instant of your lives, so that you leave behind the rags that you are carrying and dress yourselves with new clothes.

b. REMAINING FAITHFUL TO THE TRUE MAGISTERIUM OF TH CHURCH

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.13.2024

Pray, children, pray as the Mystical Body of the Church and thereby continue the teachings of My Divine Son, remaining faithful to the Teachings of the true Magisterium.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 01.17.2023

My Divine Son remains with you and you will receive the crown of glory for remaining faithful to the True Magisterium.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 05.12.2021

It is urgent that you consecrate yourselves to My Immaculate Heart and be respectful towards Sacred Scripture and the true Magisterium of the Church. Do not waver; do not become lost in false currents that separate you from the Truth proclaimed by My Son.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY

03.28.2021

Children, live within the True Magisterium of the Church of My Son. Do not succumb to easy rules that do not require sacrifice, conversion, surrender, prayer, unity, witness, fasting, love of neighbor, and above all the worship of the Holy Trinity.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 10.26.2019

As in the past, the simple, poor and humble are the lovers of the true Magisterium of the Church: these are the seeds that bear fruits of eternal life, therefore Our King continues His sowing in souls, and each person knows what fruit they will give.

PEOPLE OF GOD: WHATEVER HAPPENS, DO NOT DEVIATE FROM THE TRUE MAGISTERIUM - GOD IS THE SAME YESTERDAY, TODAY AND FOREVER (cf. Heb 13:8).

c. SCRUTINIZING THE MESSAGES FROM HEAVEN FOR THIS TIME

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 12.23.2024

My dearly beloved children, I invite you to take seriously My Calls for a radical change in your works and behavior, once and for all. What you are going to experience is extremely serious and if you do not stay on the path of conversion, you will face total darkness due to what is coming. Prepare yourselves spiritually and make yourselves worthy of receiving the Gifts that My Divine Will wants to share with each one of you.

Preparation is very important in every respect, which is why I call you to keep these Calls of Mine printed, given the imminent great darkness that NOW stands before you.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 07.04.2024

MY DIVINE SON IS IN YOU AT ALL TIMES; HE ACCOMPANIES YOU AND THIS MOTHER WILL NOT FORSAKE YOU; you must continue with this strength, little children, spreading the Word allowed by the Divine Will before everything is extinguished and you are unable to hear the Divine Calls. You will, however, be able to hear the Holy Spirit, enlightening you in your daily work and actions.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 06.20.2024

I LOVE YOU: DO NOT NEGLECT MY CALLS, REMAIN UNITED AND

ATTENTIVE TO THESE LOVING CALLS THAT ARE ALLOWED BY THE MOST HOLY TRINITY UNTIL, DUE TO NATURE OR MAN, YOU WILL NOT BE ABLE TO HEAR MY CALLS OR THOSE OF MY DIVINE SON.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.25.2024

WITHIN EACH OF YOU, IN THESE MOMENTS MY LOVE IS TAKING ROOT IN THE HEART OF EACH PERSON in order to soften you, because in order to walk attentively towards the final goal of meeting My Divine Son, you must have a "heart of flesh" so that you would be obedient to the Calls and Teachings of My Divine Son, which are necessary at this moment so that you would emerge victorious from all the trials that you are going to face - not only as a generation, but as children of My Divine Son on a personal level.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 11.12.2023

My calls are meant for the conversion of My children, of all humanity. I do not want you only to read them, but that you would treasure them in your hearts, so that on every occasion, facing every situation, you would work and act in My Will.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.16.2020

As Prince of the Heavenly Legions, I am sent by the Most Holy Trinity to call you as the People of God, so that you unite, not only in prayer, but in reparation and in penitence for the fact that humanity has not appreciated, has dismissed and denied the messages received through this instrument.

XIII. INVOKING THE QUEEN AND MOTHER OF THE END TIMES

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.01.2024

OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER UNDER THE TITLE OF THE QUEEN AND MOTHER OF THE END TIMES WILL BE SEEN BY MANY OF YOU, BEING A CONSOLATION FOR THE SOUL AND BRINGING NOURISHMENT TO MEN SO THAT THEY WOULD NOT DESPAIR.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.27.2025

Each one of you should prepare yourselves like an altar covered with good deeds and good intentions for the celebration of Holy Week. You must keep praying, not only with your mind or with your mouth, but in the depths of each one of you, in an indissoluble spiritual union with the Most Holy Trinity and Our Queen and Mother of the End Times.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.24.2022

Evil has decided to divide the People of God in all fields; this is how the serpent moves, crawling so as not to be seen. For this reason I call you, I summon you to live in Divine Love, in fraternity, since the Devil flees when faced with the weapon of Love. At the same time, invoke Our Queen and Mother of the End Times so that she would free you from the wiles of the Evil One.

RATIFY FOR YOURSELVES THAT YOU BELONG TO OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST AND TO OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER OF THE END TIMES BY PRAYING IN SILENCE AND MEDITATING ON THE PRAYER OF THE CREED.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.09.2021

You will look to the firmament with fear and will not know what to do. Call upon my name and say: "Hail Mary Most Pure, conceived without sin."

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 08.30.2018

You, children of My Immaculate Heart, persevere, do not falter, do not forget that My Immaculate Heart will triumph and that I as Queen and Mother of the End Times intercede for each one of My children, even if you do not ask Me.

XIV. KNOWING THE ANGEL OF PEACE, GOD'S ENVOY, AND UNITING WITH HIM

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 01.16.2025

Pray, My children, pray, My dearly beloved Angel of Peace looks at you, pleading for each one of you and for so many who, void of love, refuse to change. My Angel of Peace is humility itself, grieving over those who do not accept My Word, who refuse fraternity and the common good.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 12.01.2024

You must use discernment, as after the Antichrist appears, the Angel of Peace will come to dismantle the Antichrist, and those who despise God will crumble, because the Angel of Peace will come with Truth in his mouth. As the Custodian of Divine Truth, he will awaken slumbering hearts and many will repent, because he will convey love by simply looking at them.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST

04.03.2024

I bless all humanity, which I do not leave on its own: I send My Angel of Peace, who will accompany you with My Word for the good of all My children.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 07.07.2023

BEAR IN MIND THAT THE ANGEL OF PEACE S NOT AN ANGEL OF THE HEAVENLY COURT. HE IS SOMEONE CHOSEN, INSTRUCTED AND SENT WITH WORDS OF PEACE THAT WILL COME OUT OF HIS MOUTH, WITH WISDOM AND SPIRITUAL POWER TO FACE THE ANTICHRIST. You will recognize him because he is love and his appearance will come after that of the Antichrist so as not to be confused with him.

The Father's House will not leave His People on their own, which is why the Angel of Peace is someone who will work and act completely within God's Will. Do not be afraid of him: fear the Antichrist and fear losing your soul.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY

06.20.2023

Pray to the Angel of Peace, ask him for help from now on!

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.21.2021

My Angel of Peace is constantly watching you with infinite love and protecting you from now on.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 02.16.2021

I AM WITH YOU; MY MOTHER WILL NOT FORSAKE YOU, MY BELOVED SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL AND THE HEAVENLY LEGIONS STAND WAITING FOR YOU TO COMMEND YOURSELVES TO

THEIR PROTECTION, AND MY ANGEL OF PEACE WILL COME FOR THE GOOD OF MY PEOPLE.

You are blessed by Trinitarian Love: you are and will be constantly blessed. My People have never been abandoned, nor will they be in the future, for this reason I am sending My Angel of Peace so that, with My Word in his mouth, he would quench the hunger and thirst of those who are Mine during bloody times for humanity.

XV. STRATEGIES FOR SPIRITUAL GROWTH

a. LIVING IN DIVINE WILL, UNITING OURSELVES TO THE HOLY TRINITY

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 10.17.2023

Accomplish the Father's Will without allowing ideologies contrary to the religion established by My Divine Son to penetrate within your homes or the minds and hearts of your families.

At this time, you must remain more united to the Holy Trinity, to this Mother, to your Guardian Angels and to the Saints to whom you are devoted. The Angelic Legions are waiting to be invoked by you.

GOD THE FATHER 08.07.2023

I rejoice when you work and act in My Will; from the least of My children to the most exceptional children of Mine, you are protected by Me.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.09.2022

It is urgent for human beings to be more perceptive, deeper and more intuitive, but this is not a personal achievement, coming rather from union with the Most Holy Trinity.

b. ASKING FOR THE HELP OF THE HOLY SPIRIT

GOD THE FATHER

03.18.2025

Each person must ask the Holy Spirit (cf. Jn. 7:37-39; Jn. 14:16) to be able to discern and make sound decisions, not making hasty decisions, but rather ones that are considered, well-considered.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 05.26.2023

I NOURISH YOU WITH MY WILL WHEN YOU CALL UPON ME. INVOKE MY HOLY SPIRIT IN YOUR WORKS AND ACTIONS AND ASK HIM TO POUR MY BLESSINGS, not only upon you and your families, but upon all humanity, so that you would strengthen your Faith in Me and not fall prey to false ideologies that seek out My children so that they would lose their souls.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY

03.06.2023

Children, it is necessary for you to become aware that you must remain united to the Holy Spirit, asking Him for His Gifts, Graces and Virtues. YOU ARE LIVING IN THE TIME OF THE HOLY SPIRIT, AND YOU MUST ASK HIM, WITH FAITH AND CERTAINTY, TO BLESS YOU CONSTANTLY WITH HIS LOVE, SO THAT YOU WOULD HAVE FRATERNAL LOVE FOR YOUR BROTHERS AND SISTERS.

I invite you to invoke the Holy Spirit in the face of trials, regarding the needs of each person, faced with the lack of health of body and soul, lukewarm

faith or the total lack of faith, arrogance and the lack of humility, faced with the lack of charity towards neighbor, envy and the lack of fraternity: pray to the Holy Spirit.

Come Holy Spirit, You who are the Giver of gifts, fill me firstly with Your Love, then give me what I require to be a better child of God and then, if I am worthy of a Grace from Your Divinity, fill me with Yourself. Amen

THE HOLY SPIRIT WILL POUR OUT UPON HIS FAITHFUL ONES THAT WHICH IS NECESSARY SPIRITUALLY AND PHYSICALLY IN ORDER TO FACE WHAT THEY WILL EXPERIENCE; IN ADDITION, EVERY HUMAN BEING MUST BE FULLY PREPARED IN ORDER TO BE CLOTHED WITH ALL HIS GIFTS (Jn. 14:26).

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 06.29.2022

My People, at this time, you should ask the Holy Spirit for discernment at every moment. Many human beings, confused by the human ego that is filled with pride, want to move away from where I have called them, and this is not right.

THIS IS A TIME OF PREVENTION AND AT THE SAME TIME OF CHOICE:

Prevention so that you would not stray onto other paths, and choice, so that with My Holy Spirit you might be able to discern and to stand firmly with Me. You need to work in My Vineyard (Mt. 20:4) so that, with My own Love, you might wait for My Angel of Peace, who is in My House waiting for Me to send him to My People. This is why nobody has seen him face to face. My Angel of Peace will arrive after the Antichrist appears and I do not want you to confuse the two of them.

c. LIVING UNITED UNDER THE PROTECTION OF THE QUEEN AND MOTHER

GOD THE FATHER

03.04.2025

LOVE MY DAUGHTER, LOVE THE MOTHER OF MY DIVINE SON,
LOVE THE TEMPLE OF THE DIVINE SPIRIT.

Without stopping, walk and grow; be united, as it is necessary for humanity to unite with Our Trinity and your Queen and Mother (cf. Eph. 4:3-4).

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.16.2024

LOVE MY HOLY MOTHER, as a "Vessel of Devotion," My Mother takes you by Her Hand and as a Teacher She guides you towards working and acting in My Will (cf. Jn. 2: 4-10); walk hand in hand with My Mother.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 07.29.2023

In My Heart you will find the Divine Love with which you can nourish yourselves and from My Heart I offer you all "the Light" (cf. Jn 8:12) that you need to work and act in My Will:

It is the light that does not go out, because it is the Morning Star....

It is the light that enlightened and enlightens My Disciples....

It is the delicate light that illuminates everything, yet without causing pain to the eyes...

It is the light of the mystical silence that welcomed all humanity...

THIS LIGHT IS MY MOTHER, WHOM I LOVE AND WHO LIVES WITHIN MY HEART, INTERCEDING FOR HUMANITY.

IT IS THE ENCOUNTER WITH LOVE THAT BEARS FRUIT OF ETERNAL LIFE.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.12.2022

Be true children of Our Queen and Mother; allow Her to guide and intercede for each one of you so that under Her Protection you might resist with firm Faith during the passage of the trial and so that you would not fall into the perversity of the Antichrist.

Love Our Queen and Mother; treasure her as a precious pearl, venerate her - she is the Mother of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ.

THE MOST HOLY TRINITY HAS ENTRUSTED THE PROTECTION OF EACH ONE OF YOU TO OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER AT THIS TIME WHICH IS SO CRITICAL IN HUMAN HISTORY.

d. INNER SILENCE AND MEDITATION

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.14.2025

My call is to meditate upon the Word which is Found in Sacred Scripture.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.06.2025

Continue to be firm and faithful, do not allow the enemy of the soul to deceive you, and learn to live loving your neighbor and living in inner silence.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 12.22.2023

Make a resolution to silence the voice of your thoughts, which sometimes leads you away from My Divine Son, and in inner silence, discern what you know, what I have revealed to you at all times, so that you would have a foundation for a faith that must grow constantly.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 11.02.2023

LITTLE CHILDREN, BE SOULS WHO PRAY IN ALL YOUR EVERYDAY ACTIONS AND WORKS; BE GREAT WORKERS IN THE GREAT VINEYARD OF MY DIVINE SON, in which there are no great individuals who stand out, nor great critics of their brothers and sisters, but only great heroes in inner silence.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 03.22.2023

My children, creatures of good, pray and remain silent so that you might calm your mind and thus be a blessing to your brothers and sisters, putting into practice what you preach.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 03.23.2022

My beloved People, without entering into the confusion of the world, enter into inner silence, far from worldly things, taking the Most Holy Hand of My Mother, so that together with Her you may free yourselves from evil and keep yourselves on the True Path that leads you to My House.

My Mother of Silence, Mother of Faith, teaches you to be creatures of silence, not in the face of injustice, but in the face of your lack of love for your brothers and sisters.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 07.17.2021

You must be true, living within the Love of My Son so that you would be unity, which is essential at this time when you must be protective shields for one another, seeing My Son in your brother and sister. You do not yet understand that if you do not live in inner silence, you will stray onto other paths, and it will be difficult for you to enter into intimacy with My Son.

At this time it is urgent to enter into spiritual intimacy with my son that others' perceptions do not move you.

Do you wish to find closeness to My Son and to Me?

Come into silence, quieten yourselves, pray. It is urgent that you remain close to My Son so that you may be strengthened before the events to come for all humanity. Humanity's passion will not be easy: the trials will not be easy and even less so if you do not have love.

Make yourselves worthy of the assistance of Our most beloved Angel of Peace .

e. ASKING FOR FORGIVENESS AND FORGIVING OUR BROTHERS AND SISTERS

GOD THE FATHER 02.08.2025

I call you to look at yourselves and to live this out: "Forgive us our sins as we forgive those who sin against us" (Mt. 6:12).

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 06.03.2024

I invite you to maintain peace in your families and to be humble; if there are disagreements, seek forgiveness from each other. If they do not forgive you, then you forgive so evil and resentment weigh less.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 05.24.2024

Love one another, little children, as I love you (cf. Jn. 13:34-35). These are not times for not forgiving one another. These are times for forgiveness so that you might free yourselves from your chains, because the Devil does not rest, and I call you to forgive (cf. Mt. 18:21-35).

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.02. 2023

Bear witness to fraternity, knowing that those who forgive are forgiven, that those who love their brothers and sisters are loved by the Most Holy Trinity and by Our Queen and Mother of the End Times.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.04.2023

My Divine Son asked forgiveness for those who crucified Him (Lk. 23:34). Forgiveness blesses, and you should forgive without waiting to be asked for forgiveness.

AS THE MOTHER OF DIVINE LOVE, AT THIS MOMENT I FORGIVE YOU THE OFFENSES DONE TO ME AT SOME POINT IN YOUR LIVES, CONSCIOUSLY AND UNCONSCIOUSLY.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.03.2023

Understand the value of faith (cf. James 2:17-22; 1 Tim. 6:8). Keeping faith in God leads you to forgive from deep within you without the need to think about it. The children of God forgive because faith assures them that God takes care of everything (cf. Eph. 4:32; Mk. 11:25).

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.03.2020

Our supreme King wants his children to call him with a contrite and humble heart, pleading for divine forgiveness in order to return to the true path leading to eternal life, but not without first recognizing and grieving over how you have offended the Most Holy Trinity, simultaneously present in each human being.

f. SACRAAMENT OF RECONCILIATION. EXAMINATION OF CONSCIENCE, REPENTANCE, AND THE FIRM ITENTION OF AMMENDMENT

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 03.15.2009

My crucified, but glorious Hand is extended before each one of My children, to grasp them strongly and take them out of the mud; no matter how soiled a child may be, I will not leave him. All are worthy to enter in My House, I only wait for a word, I only wait for a "Lord help me, be near me, listen to me, forgive me!" and I go immediately to give aid.

For each one of you, you who listen and read this word of Mine:

"For you beloved child,
For you I gave myself up on the Cross,
And for you I wait in the Sacrament of Reconciliation
To forgive you and to welcome you,
So that you may be reunited with Me
And I may love you with all of My Divine Love."

GOD THE FATHER

02.08.2025

Forgiveness for offenses committed must remind you of My Love for each one of My children. Each absolution that you receive, My children, is at the same time a task that you receive in order to resist falling again, and for this you must be humble every day.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.06.2024

REPENT AND ASK GOD FOR FORGIVENESS for so much offense and aberration, for so much sacrilege and closeness you have with the Devil, for disobedience to the Commandments and Sacraments and for disobeying the Teachings of the Holy Scriptures. Ask forgiveness for the naturalness with which you accept depravity in all aspects and join sects that go against the Divine Law.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 07.15.2024

Those who come before Me truly repentant and with a firm intent to amend their lives, on them I pour our My Mercy.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 06.06.2024

My little children, you should not wait to pray, to make reparation, to repent of the sins that you have committed in the past, of which you are aware and by which you are mortified.

ASK FOR FORGIVENESS NOW (cf. Ps. 50) AND RETURN TO THE SACRAMENT OF RECONCILIATION!

I know that you feel pain because of oppression and that you feel pain because of so much that is happening at the moment, but consider, little children, that if you give yourself the opportunity to go to the Sacrament of Confession, you will receive the great opportunity, the great blessing of the forgiveness of your sins. And if you have a firm resolution not to commit the same sin or to go back to sinning, and if you feel pain for what you have confessed, My little children, you will see Divine Assistance before you at the most crucial moments of humanity's pain and suffering. For you will not be continuing on your own, just as you have not been alone, little children. It is that Heaven that will direct its People and will give them the food needed to provide them with the spiritual strength to not fall into horror and fear.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 01.10.2024

You are living in times foretold for all humanity and yet, in the midst of these painful events for humanity, you still fail to cry out to My Divine Son for forgiveness of your wrong habits, for forgiveness and true repentance for going against the Teachings of My Divine Son.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

06.06.2023

So many human beings are enclosed within their human ego, preventing them from being able to see themselves in the constant error in which they are living. In these calls to review yourselves inwardly, it is necessary for you to have the genuine and real intention to search within yourselves NOW:

What is in you?

What is your commitment to Christ?

What are your feelings, your desires, your behavior and morality?

I call you not to look at your ego but at your behavior towards your neighbor: What is your degree of love for your neighbor and your dedication to your neighbor?

Are you creatures of good or creatures of evil?

How much good dwells in you?

What is the quality of your works and behavior?

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 10.04.2023

If you repent from your heart and make a firm proposition of amendment and fulfill it, I enter into the human heart and then attract it with the sweetness of My Love so that you would have no desire to leave My Way (Jn. 14:6). My Most Holy Mother intercedes for you all so that you would not be lost.

g. ASKNG FOR DIVINE GRACE TO DEVELOP THE VIRTUES:

HUMILITY

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.09.2025

Those who do not put aside their selfishness, those who do not eradicate their arrogance, will find spiritual improvement more difficult; but conversion is not impossible if they are rightly disposed to be humble. At this time, humility is essential for every human being in order to walk in the footsteps of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ (cf. Luke 14:11; Phil. 2:3-8).

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 09.01.2023

Children, it is dangerous to go from humility to pride: it only takes one step. Creatures do not perceive it, but when they analyze their way of acting and behaving, if they are sincere with themselves, they will notice that they have crossed over into pride. Everyone should take this into account: do not say to yourselves "it is not for me" - it is for everyone. Creatures with an inflated human ego always know everything and yet they know nothing... My Plans are My Plans!

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 12.19.2022

You must look within yourselves, even if it is difficult for you. My arrogant children do not listen to Me; they look at their brothers and sisters without looking at themselves and these human creatures of Mine must change so that they would learn to offer up their pain to Me and learn to be humble. It is humility that you need at this time, for charity is not only about helping the needy, but loving and respecting one's neighbor with their faults and virtues.

PRUDENCE

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 12.02.2023

Act with prudence: the Antichrist smiles when he gains ground in souls.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 12.16.2022

Remain on spiritual alert; be creatures of simplicity and humility of heart. Knowledge should not be displayed, but acted upon as a testimony of what dwells within each one of you. Prudence is a great companion for the Gifts. The prudent do not expose themselves to being brought down (Mt 10:16).

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.12.2021

You must strive to learn to become silent internally; this is urgent in order that you would see clearly, think correctly and act with prudence.

OBEDIENCE

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.12.2024

I come to ask you to remain united and to join fraternally, that you would be cautious and obedient.

This is not just one more message – it is a call to obedience to the revelations that you have received and to bring them to life.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.12.2023

Live in unity and fraternity, for both fraternity and obedience to the Divine Commands will make the Devil groan with terror and fear.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.12.2021

For those who live in obedience and who entrust themselves with faith and love to the Trinitarian Will and to Our Queen and Mother, the events will be less of a torment.

INNER PEACE

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.26.2024

The Angel of Peace knows that strength resides in inner peace, he knows that the strength of the children of the Holy Trinity is revealed in the humility they possess. He brings the Divine Word and without being divine you will recognize him for his wisdom, undertsanding, counsel, fortitude, knowledge, piety and fear of God; he will demand from you the seasoning of love and humility.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.12.2024

Maintain inner peace, visit Me, adore Me, receive Me, know Me so that you may be able to differentiate between what is Mine and what is not Mine.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 10.09.2023

The absence of inner peace in humanity keeps human beings lacking in true love. Inner peace is experienced by souls which strive to be love at every moment. Without inner peace, love within the human being is in a state of agony.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.22.2022

THE PEOPLE OF OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST ARE CALLED TO MAINTAIN PERSONAL PEACE AND TO TRANSMIT IT TO THEIR BROTHERS AND SISTERS.

Those who do not have inner peace do not have the wisdom to maintain equanimity in the midst of storms.

UNITY AND FRATERNITY

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 12.01.2024

IT IS THE DESIRE OF THE MOST HOLY TRINITY that each one of Their children be a witness to Their love, mercy, understanding, forgiveness, charity and unity with your fellow men and women and thereby expand the Kingdom of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ on Earth.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.23.2022

I HAVE TO TELL YOU THAT WHOEVER DOES NOT CHANGE THEIR WORKS AND ACTIONS IN THE DIRECTION OF FRATERNITY, WILL FALL PREY TO DARKNESS. Pride, selfishness, arrogance and superiority are small tentacles with which the Devil is causing excessive damage and I, as Prince of the Armies of Heaven, will not allow the People of My King and Lord Jesus Christ to be undermined.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 06.18.2022

Fraternity among God's children is paramount and unity is necessary in the face of the onslaught of evil that wants to destroy and to divide the works of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02.19.2022

I call you to be fraternal so that you would help one another. Put the Divine Calls into practice. Do not only read them but internalize and bring each Call to life; in this way you will be prepared for the unexpected actions that may present themselves to humanity.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.24.2022

Evil has decided to divide the People of God in all fields; this is how the serpent moves, crawling so as not to be seen. For this reason I call you, I summon you to live in Divine Love, in fraternity, since the Devil flees when faced with the weapon of Love. At the same time, invoke Our Queen and Mother of the End Times so that she would free you from the wiles of the Evil One.

INCREASING FAITH

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 03.11.2025

Faith is necessary...

MY DIVINE SON AND THIS MOTHER WHO LOVES YOU WISH TO ASSIST YOU. THIS IS WHY THERE HAS BEEN AN INSISTENCE ON FAITH, SO THAT YOU MIGHT BE WORTHY OF BEING GUIDED ALONG THE RIGHT PATH.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.25.2024

Grow in faith, for faith moves mountains (cf. Mt. 17:20- 21): grow spiritually and do not be so concerned with material things.

Prepare, yes, but not excessively, for faith will be the ingredient that will give the necessary seasoning to everything you undertake in the Name of

the Most Holy Trinity or in My Name or in obedience to My beloved Saint Michael the Archangel. Firm faith, strong faith, determined faith, My children!

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.30.2022

Faith and reason do not contradict one another. They are in contradiction when the human ego penetrates the human mind and holds it in a constant debate between Faith and reason.

Decide now to seek salvation... and for this it is necessary for you to be creatures of unshakeable and firm Faith, thirsting for the Salvation of all humanity.

Who will resist in the face of the coming changes?

Those who do not turn back or waver in professing the Faith...

Those who prepare themselves in Faith and whose trust in Divine Mercy is stronger because they have been partakers of the greatness of the Holy Trinity...

These will stand firm.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.03.2023

Children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, keep the faith (II Cor. 5:7) at all times. Being creatures of faith causes My Legions' protection for you to be maintained.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.13.2023

It is urgent that you grow in Faith...

It is urgent that your Faith be strengthened by the Holy Eucharist and strengthened by praying the Holy Rosary, weapon of the end times.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 10.16.2022

Faithful People, it is necessary for you to go from a mediocre spiritual life to living spirituality in its fullness by Faith. The People of God must have firm Faith (I Jn 5:4) at this time when de-Christianization is increasingly progressing. The human race's respect for the Divine has fallen very low, and this will generate the great persecution towards the People of God. For this reason, it is necessary for human beings to have Faith and understanding, so that they would be steadfast in prayer; without prayer there is no fusion with the Most Holy Trinity.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 02.16.2022

Keep the Faith: do not lose it even for an instant. Faith is gold in the hearts, minds and thoughts of My Own. Without Faith you are nothing: without Faith every wind moves you one way or the other.

LIVING HOPE

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 10.27.2024

I have given a treasure to each one of My children. Each one knows what to do with that treasure. Some guard it and make it grow with their acts carried out in My love. You must grow this treasure by working and acting in the charity born of My love, in the hope born of My love. In Me, place your faith and make it grow. Other children of mine squander the treasure, complain about everything, and deprecate this treasure for a worldly life.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 08.22.2024

Pray, My children, pray, come to My Immaculate Heart, enter into My Heart where I will instruct you in the way of faith, in the way of humility, in the way of hope, in the way of charity. He who possesses humility possesses a

great treasure. Children, the haughty minds and hearts will suffer more at the moment of facing trials.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.17.2024

Those who are loving possess a treasure from which every jewel comes: charity, forgiveness, the wisdom of understanding and the wealth of hope. Love makes all things possible, achieves all things, it has the Law of God to hand and draws near to what is good.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 04.04.2022

YOU ARE NOT ALONE. PRAY WITH YOUR HEART AND OUR SACRED HEARTS WILL PROTECT YOU AT ALL TIMES.

Be creatures of adoration; be creatures of hope in the promises that you have received.

BEING LOVE, CHARITY, AND KINDNESS

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.06.2025

EVERY HUMAN BEING IS CALLED IN THIS LENT ESPECIALLY TO BE LOVE - NOT ONLY DURING THESE FORTY DAYS, BUT FOR THE REST OF YOUR LIFE.

Love is the measure of the true Christian...

Love comes to us given by God...

For human beings, love holds back sin, holds back envy, stops bad thoughts, stops the desire for revenge, eliminates greed, because love puts aside and crushes works contrary to the Divine Will; therefore, be love and "the rest will be added unto you" (cf. Mt. 6, 33-34).

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 07.04.2024

Inner change is urgent; it is urgent that you join the ranks of the army of the end times, which is the army of the Apostles of the End Times, distinguished by being loving, by possessing love, nourishing themselves on and living according to love (cf. I Cor.13:1-8).

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.18.2022

It is necessary for each person to have the certainty that you possess attributes with which God the Father has endowed you in order to love God and to love your neighbor, and to be love, holy and pure, welcoming your neighbor and acknowledging that God is everything in your life. Believing that God exists, "loving God above all things" (Mt 22:37-40), does not make you less human, but freer. Therefore, he who loves his brother is truly a human being, a witness to Trinitarian Love.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 08.07.2022

WITH MY LOVE I CONSTANTLY BLESS YOU AND CALL YOU TO LOVE ME SO THAT YOU MIGHT LIVE IN MY LOVE AND GIVE LOVE TO YOUR BROTHERS AND SISTERS.

Without love you are like dry trees that do not bear fruit: their leaves fall off and they do not bear fruit. So, it is with those who refuse My Love, they are like the dry tree (Mt. 7:19). Therefore, I call you to conversion and to ask My Holy Spirit for the Gift of Love so that you may be that crystalline water, that fruit which is the testimony of those who work and act in My Will.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.18.2021

The human being must be a bearer of goodness, which is the spiritual vessel of "generosity" and "clemency", so that people would receive God's favor, if obedience is put first.

Walk hand in hand with kindness. Do not forget this great virtue, fruit of the Holy Spirit (cf. Gal 5:22-25), which transforms a person, causing them to act and work with benevolence.

h. CLEANSING THE MIND, THOUGHTS, AND THE PHYSICAL AND SPIRITUAL SENSES

GOD THE FATHER 03.18.2025

My children, cleanse your minds, memories, and thoughts of everything that has led you and leads you to commit sin; strive not to sin and to be more of Me than of the world.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 06.06.2022

You must decide to turn away from sin, from all that corrupts your spiritual and physical senses, your mind, your thoughts and all that hardens your heart.

You must make a firm decision, having a firm intention to make amends for your possible falls as regards detachment from worldliness, from what is sinful and from inappropriate habits. The tyranny of the human self is strong when it has been allowed to take hold of the reins of the cravings of the flesh and the senses.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 01.20.2021

Keep your spiritual senses in a state of alert. This time is serious and difficult, and if you do not continually guard your personal walk, some of My children, who have not managed to descend from the pedestal of their human ego, will lead you to be their servants and not those of My Son.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 01.05.2020

We the Heavenly Armies accompany the People of God in their trials. We remain near to each person: do not fear, sow peace in your heart, have a clean mind, think with perseverance in faith, be creatures of peace.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 02.02.2019

As I am all Mercy, I do not deny My Forgiveness, but you need to come before Me with your heart, mind, thought and all senses directed towards a goal: not sinning or taking part with those who offend Me; you need to be true and to accomplish works of mercy (cf. Mt. 25:31-46), decide to grow in love towards neighbor and be charitable, without decreasing in hope, so that faith remains firm.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 10.10.2018

I call you back to interior spiritualization in order that your physical senses act in accordance with your spiritualized internal senses; your spiritual organization must rise up and be guided by a right conscience, so that the latter assists you in the discernment between good and evil.

I CALL YOU BACK TO INTERIOR SPIRITUALIZATION IN ORDER THAT

i. INVOKING SAINT MICHAEL, THE ARCHANGEL, THE CELESTIAL CHOIRS AND THE GUARDIAN ANGELS

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.29.2025

My Heavenly Armies are alongside human beings as never before in the history of humanity, offering them protection and guidance in these times of tribulation. (cf. Dan. 12:1)

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 12.16.2024

The Heavenly Armies remain on alert to defend you; your Guardian Angels protect you – you should make this possible by walking towards conversion.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.12.2024

My Heavenly Armies continuously protect you. Be grateful for this protection by adoring the Holy Trinity continuously. May your works and acts be all in the Divine Will, not in the human one.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.31.2024

Prepare yourselves, that united with My Heavenly Hosts we will defend you from the evil of body and spirit, whenever you desire and are ready to return to Our King and Lord Jesus Christ. My Heavenly Hosts, commanded by Our Queen and Mother, we stand before humanity to defend and assist you.

COMMENTARY OF LUZ DE MARIA 02.19.2024

The Envoy, filled with the Maternal Love of Our Most Holy Mother, together with the Heavenly Armies, will fight the fiercest spiritual battle of the end times, commanded by Our Queen and Mother, who will crush the head of Satan, and in the end the Immaculate Heart of Mary will triumph.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.14.2023

Children, Earth's four cardinal points are protected by St. Michael the Archangel and His Legions. The Heavenly Armies watch over all humanity, waiting for some human being's call in order to come to guard it and keep it away from the Devil.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

02.06.2023

You must be creatures of good and invoke Divine Assistance at all times, making supplication for the help of your Guardian Angels, who want you to trust in them.

j. COMPLYING WITH THE COMMANDMENTS OF THE LAW OF GOD AND THE SACRAMENTS

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.21.2024

Prepare yourselves, spiritually, be observant of the Commandments, be merciful, comply with the Divine Mandates, and listen to the Word of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, embodied in the Holy Scriptures, which you cannot change.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 06.20.2024

Remember that your life must focus on My Divine Son, on His Teachings, on fulfilling the Commandments, Sacraments and Works of Mercy, and pray – may you be nourished by prayer.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 12.22.2023

Bear in mind, My children, that what is happening at this time is part of the Plan of the Evil One; work and act without falling into the snares of evil. Resist temptation, live attached to The Commandments, fulfil the Sacraments and Works of Mercy (Mt. 25:35-36).

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 03.27.2023

Do you want to know how to prepare yourselves for all that is coming to humanity?

Be true children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ and love His Mother, the Blessed Virgin Mary.

Be doers of the Divine Word present in Sacred Scripture. This means being knowers and practitioners of the Divine Word (James 1:22-25). Love the Commandments and keep them.

Know and comply with the Sacraments.

Practice the Beatitudes constantly ask for the assistance of the Holy Spirit. Put into practice the Corporal and Spiritual Works of Mercy. Love your neighbor and be humble. Be lights on the way.

Live the Faith in its splendor and live each day in interior prayer, fulfilling the Will of Our Father.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 04.12.2022

The Commandments are not subject to ideologies, human beings or circumstances: THEY ARE TEN AND THEY STAND WRITTEN. LET WHOEVER CHANGES THEM BE ANATHEMA.

There are so many who wish to omit My Word, the Commandments and the Sacraments in order to bring forth the new religion, which is total lawlessness and the renunciation of Me and My Mother.... They will deny the Creed and the Our Father will be changed. BEWARE, MY PEOPLE, THIS IS NOT ME!

k. PRAYING, WORSHIPPING AND MAKING REPARATION

THE BLESSED VIRIGN MARY 03.25.2025

Children, this moment is very serious and grave for humanity. I protect you with My Maternal Mantle; I am Your Mother, and I desire that all My children be worshipers of My Divine Son.

At this moment there must be greater prayer than in the past. You must cry out in order not to fall into the clutches of the infernal demon and his henchmen.

GOD THE FATHER 03.18.2025

Homes where you pray the Holy Rosary maintain a special blessing of protection, as long as you continue to fulfill My Will.

GOD THE FATHER 03.04.2025

MAKE AN EFFORT TO BELIEVE IN ME, TO WORSHIP MY DIVINE SON AND TO ASK FOR THE GIFTS AND VIRTUES OF OUR DIVINE SPIRIT (cf. Rom. 8:26-27).

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 02.13.2025

Beloved children, be fervent worshipers of My Divine Son; pray without tiring. Keep in mind that My Divine Son does not tire of waiting for you. The fact that you pray the Creed – the profession of faith, drives away the Devil, but you must remain in a state of Grace.

Praying the Holy Rosary, in which you pray the Creed, the Our Father, the Hail Mary's and the exclamatory prayers, makes the Devil feel strong pains and flee.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 11.02.2024

I CALL YOU TO STAY ON SPIRITUAL ALERT, TO BE MORE LIKE GOD, TO SEEK HIM, TO WORSHIP HIM. HOLD ON TO THE DIVINE POWER, TO THE DIVINE OMNIPOTENCE SO THAT YOU MAY RESIST WHAT IS UPON YOU AND WHAT IS GOING TO HAPPEN.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 09.21.2024

Children of Our King and Lord Jesus Christ, be strict with yourselves, be human creatures in search of the good; live in adoration, prostrate yourselves before the Holy Trinity and let that prostration become action through your works and acts of every instant, with the only interest of bringing good to your brothers and sisters.

The prostration out of respect or supplication, towards the One and Triune God, is not for a moment; prolong that act in a continuous adoration; vivify faith, it should not be asleep, or tired, or weakened, but faith should remain giving light, being the responsibility of each human creature to possess the best oil so that faith does not weaken.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 08.09.2024

GREAT DANGER IS LYING IN WAIT FOR HUMANITY, SO GREAT THAT ALL HUMAN BEINGS OF ALL BELIEFS WILL RECALL THAT "I AM WHO I AM" (cf. Jn. 8:58; Ex. 3:14). You will enter into the great darkness that I have announced to you in the face of the struggle for power. Be prepared - you will not be able to communicate. I call you to keep in print the books you use for prayer.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 08.01.2024

THOSE WHO LIVE IN ADORATION OF THE MOST HOLY TRINITY WILL HAVE LEFT HUNGER BEHIND; THEY WILL LIVE IN ADORATION WHEREVER THEY MUST REMAIN.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 05.24.2024

Little children, I hear so many praying and yet I feel coldness in their prayers; I hear so many praying, yet they do not pray with love. When you

approach Me, when you pray, I want you to pray with your heart, feeling and living every word that you dedicate to Me and to My Mother. You must maintain clarity in your thoughts so that your heart would continue to be a heart of flesh.

OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST 04.03.2024

Little children, to demonstrate My Mercy I offer you My Heart so that you may take refuge in It and, through repentance, prayer and reparation, prevent the waters of the seas from flooding some lands and famine from increasing on Earth.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 03.07.2024

My children, walk uprightly, fulfilling the Commandments, go to receive My Divine Son in the Celebration of the Eucharist, adore My Son in the Sacrament of the Altar. MY CHILDREN, I ACCOMPANY YOU, I ACCOMPANY EVERY PERSON WHO COMES BEFORE MY DIVINE SON IN ORDER TO WORSHIP HIM, SO THAT THEY WOULD NOT BE ALONE, BRINGING TO THEIR HEART WORDS AND FEELINGS OF LOVE TOWARDS MY DIVINE SON.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 01.17.2023

Children, you must worship My Son continually, without rest, so that the infernal beast would not poison your thinking. Remain in prayer, making reparation and resembling My Divine Son.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 12.19.2022

Humanity lacks everything that I have mentioned to you... Therefore, it is very important and indispensable that each one of you pray and offer Me Eucharistic Communions in reparation for the errors with which My Church is offending Me. And bear in mind that receiving Me in a state of grace,

worthily prepared, as well as the prayer of the Holy Rosary, can succeed in lessening the intensity of some of the events to come, if it is My Will.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 07.23.2023

I come in order to invite you to be creatures of faith and perpetual adorers of Jesus in the Sacrament; in this way, hearts of stone will succeed in allowing the Great Maker of life to shape them with a chisel, according to His Will.

1. FASTING

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.16.2024

As your God, I invite you to pray, to fast, to feel with a heart of flesh.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 01.02.2024

Conversion will not be achieved through prayer alone, but rather through eradicating everything within you that keeps you from being recognized as My children. Change must hurt and therefore all those whose health does not prevent it should offer fasts, not only from food, but from lack of love for their neighbor, fasting from pride, fasting from domination, fasting from believing that they know everything, fasting from foolishness.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL

05.07.2022

Go forward in obedience, without wasting this moment.

Convert, pray, offer sacrifices and fast, if your condition allows it. Make reparation in advance; the Church of Our King is being invaded by the forces of evil in order to undermine her, causing the Mystical Body to fall into unbelief.

m. BLESSING OURSELVES AND BLESSING OUR BROTHERS AND SISTERS

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 10.22.2023

MY CALL IS A SPECIAL ONE. I want each one of you to bless yourself by being aware of the spiritual moment in which you are living. In this way your works and behavior and will be in accordance with those of a true child of My Divine Son and at the same time you will bless your brothers and sisters (Numbers 6:24-26; Lk. 6:28).

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 07.29.2023

My children, I constantly bless you and you should do the same: bless one another. It is not necessary to exaggerate greetings or farewells: a "*God bless you*" or "*blessings*" is enough, not forgetting that "shows" or spectacles are the Devil's way of acting.

COMENTARY OF LUZ DE MARÍA 07.29.2023

With regard to blessing among brothers, I note that this blessing can be done internally; it is not a question of blessing for the sake of blessing but of doing so with the Love that our King and Lord Jesus Christ asks of us - desiring the good, but without exaggerating.

XVI. RECEIVING OUR LORD JESUS CHRIST IN THE HOLY EUCHARIST

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 12.06.2024

Receive Me properly prepared. I give you the strength and courage to overcome the changes.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.16.2024

Children, I call you to keep yourselves spiritually prepared: come to Me children, be reconciled, participate in the Celebration of the Eucharist and receive Me properly prepared.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 07.15.2024

Come to the Sacrament of Reconciliation, receive Me in the Sacrament of the Eucharist; you need Communions received in a true state of awareness, knowing that every time you receive Me the Earth shines and from My House we see the light reflected by the soul, the light of My Love (cf. Jn. 12:35-36).

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 03.15.2024

My beloved children, pray and make reparation, visit Me in the Blessed Sacrament, receive Me in the Sacrament of the Eucharist, where I strengthen you and love you.

XVII.SPIRITUAL PREPARATION FOR THE WARNING

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 10.21.2024

Everyone is being seriously tempted by the Devil and his legions (2 Pet. 2:9) to depart from the Holy Trinity and our Queen and Mother, and from their commitments to the Father's House, without thinking that they are close to the moment of the Warning. They will examine themselves, subjected to unthinkable pain for having committed acts contrary to the Divine Will, for disobedience, and for having given first place to the ego. They will regret how much they gave preference to the world and not to the Holy Trinity.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 10.10.2024

Children of the Holy Trinity, you face The Warning. You will see a light coming from above, and it will illuminate even the shadows. Then, as you are shaken by this great event, silence will arrive. You will hear nothing, and nothing will move. Everything will be in the silence of God, where each one of you will be before your own conscience, and you will examine yourselves, in your actions and deeds, even if you do not wish to do so.

This act of Divine Mercy is, for all mankind, the opportunity for conversion. Before this outpouring of Divine Mercy, make up your minds to change interiorly, and though you will have examined your sins, the good you have failed to do and the good you have refused to receive, you will see them and it will hurt you.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.12.2024

Each one of you will have to examine yourselves and you will judge yourselves; therefore, I call you to prepare yourselves spiritually, for the Warning is soon.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 09.15.2022

PREPARE FOR THE WARNING: examine yourselves inwardly, be humble, fulfill what I call you to fulfill and accept My Word with love.

COMENTARY OF LUZ DE MARÍA 08.09.2021

Brothers and sisters, at the end of this Call Our Lord Jesus Christ spoke to me, leading me to see what He was saying to me:

This time is bringing you closer to the Warning and you must repent of the evil you have committed and the good that you have failed to do. You must prepare yourselves, examine yourselves and not lie to yourselves. It is urgent for you at this moment to look at yourselves without reserve and to repent.

I saw many brothers and sisters around the world repenting of their wrongdoings. But at the end I was allowed to see separations in families due to some denouncing others and causing them to be separated.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.25.2020

Prepare yourselves in the spirit, after the Warning the righteous will be more righteous and the holy will be more holy.

OUR LORD JESUSCHRIST 04.26.2019

Beloveds, prepare yourselves for the Warning: it is My patent, tangible mercy in favor of humanity, and even so there will be those who banish Me more forcefully after the Warning.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 11.30.2016

Pray, prepare for the great event of Mercy, prepare for the Warning during which I will not separate Myself from you.

XVIII. SPIRITUAL REFUGES

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 11.05.2024

I protect you with My Maternal Mantle, which is: A shield, a refuse, a blockage for the Devil, a light on the path, food and water for My children.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 05.28.2024

The Sacred Hearts are the refuge of God's children.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 09.09.2022

Are you looking for refuges? Do you want to reach a physical refuge for the most crucial times? Firstly, be refuges where My Son rests and finds contentment at this time and in times to come. Be love. Be doers of God's Will.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 02,22,2021

STAY WITHIN THE REFUGE OF THE SACRED HEARTS OF OUR KING AND LORD JESUS CHRIST AND OF OUR QUEEN AND MOTHER. AFTERWARDS YOU WILL BE GUIDED BY MY LEGIONS TO THE SHELTERS PREPARED FOR YOUR PROTECTION. HOMES TRULY DEDICATED TO THE SACRED HEARTS ARE ALREADY REFUGES. YOU WILL NEVER BE FORSAKEN BY THE HAND OF GOD.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 12.23.2021

I call you to take shelter in My Womb, a sure refuge for My Son's People. Are you looking for material shelters without preparing the shelter of the spirit?

Children of My Son, People of My Son:

Firstly, be spiritual beings with hearts of flesh, with pure feelings and fraternity; be sowers of hope, lovers of peace and concord, orderly in your works and behavior, respectful and cultivated in your relations with your brothers and sisters. Be people who value the work of your brothers and sisters, respecting them so that your fellow men would respect you.

My children, I wish to keep you within My Womb - Ark of Salvation and Refuge of each one of you, in the face of so much pain that is coming as a consequence of the evil that has taken hold of those who, through economic power, have set out to spread despair on Earth among My children, paving the way for the Antichrist, scourging this generation whose wrong works and behavior has allowed evil to penetrate.

SAINT MICHAEL THE ARCHANGEL 04.18.2021

You are concerned with preparing physical shelters without first deciding to change your lives. You are not converted and yet you want to go to a refuge to protect yourselves: where is your Faith?

No, children of God, you will not be able to protect yourself in a refuge without having converted, even if you do so at the last minute.

THE MOST HOLY VIRGIN MARY 11,25,2018

Beloveds, each person must remain within their personal refuge, which you will find within My Immaculate Heart and without leaving IT, and at the same time, those who wish to do so and for whom it is possible, and without disintegrating families, be disposed for the formation of small refuges where the Word expressed in Sacred Scripture be the norm for life and where The Body and Blood of My Son be the Light and support for all to live in fraternity as brothers and sisters, and so that, united, they protect and help one another, living in community.

This should not be reason for insecurity for those who do not participate in some refuge; families can prepare themselves to face difficult instants and thus work to form a family refuge. Children, if the intention arises in your heart, the rest will be added unto you.

MARANATHA, COME LORD JESUS!

And from the fig tree learn a parable:
When the branch thereof is now tender,
and the leaves come forth,
you know that summer is nigh.
So you also,
when you shall see all these things,
know ye that it is nigh, even at the doors.
Amen I say to you, that this generation
shall not pass, till all these things be done.



Heaven and earth shall pass, but my words shall not pass.

(MT. 24, 32-35)